
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
CITY OF DOTHAN, ALABAMA 
REGULAR MEETING 
AUGUST 21, 2007 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of the City of Dothan, Alabama, met in regular 
session in the Commission Chambers of the Roy Driggers Municipal Building at 
10:00 A.M., Tuesday, August 21, 2007 with the following members present:  
Mayor Pat Thomas, Associate Commissioners Larry Matthews, Amos M. 
Newsome, Jr., Paul Lee, Jason Rudd and Phillip Tidwell.  Commissioner Taylor 
Barbaree was absent. Also present were City Manager Michael West, City Clerk 
Pam McCoy, Secretary Tammy Danner, who recorded the Minutes of the Meeting, 
and the local news media representatives. 
 
Mayor Thomas called the meeting to order. Commissioner Tidwell, then led in 
prayer, afterwhich he led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Commissioner Tidwell moved that the Minutes of the Meeting of August 14, 2007, 
be approved, motion seconded by Commissioner Lee and unanimously approved. 
 
Commissioner Matthews commended Chief Powell for the commercial he did on 
school safety recently. He said it would be good if we could get more of that.  
 
Mayor Thomas said we have talked about recycling for several months now. He 
said he would like to see, within thirty days, options and projected costs and let 
this group make a decision on which way we are going to go. City Manager West 
said he would put something together for the Commission. 
 
In regard to the Southwest Park property, Mayor Thomas said even though the 
specific property was not addressed at the last meeting, the thought of a 
southwest park is still very much in the works. Mayor Thomas said there will be a 
called meeting of the Recreation Board this Thursday to talk about different land 
parcels.  
 
Commissioner Tidwell said he attended a meeting the other day and there were 
questions and comments about the permitting office being open at a certain time 
and the doors would be locked at a certain time. Commissioner Tidwell requested 
that a memorandum be sent to every home builder or anyone in the trades that 
need to get inspections of anything new that may be coming up, etc. He said there 
are a lot of times they need to call in and anything we can do to help them not lose 
a day of work because the inspection has not been done would be greatly 
appreciated.  
 
Commissioner Tidwell said he heard a rumor concerning impact fees that may be 
coming forward here soon. He said in his personal opinion that may be something 
in the future, but right now, after the one cent sales tax that was passed it is not 
the right timing. City Manager West said the only conversation he remembered 
was about providing upgrades to the lift stations to accommodate future growth on 
Fortner Street. He said the developers themselves brought up the possibility of 
assessing an impact fee to have the lift stations enlarged once and for all rather 
than each person coming along individually and having to pay for the upgrade.  
 
Todd McDonald, Director of Planning and Zoning said a true impact fee is non-
authorized in the State of Alabama with the exception of Baldwin County. Mayor 
Thomas said the true impact fees that we have had discussion about are 
surrounding communities that we charge impact fees to. He said as our sewage 
costs continue to rise, those impact fees will be addressed. Mayor Thomas said he 
has had no discussion with anyone else other than what the developers brought 
up themselves. 
 
Commissioner Lee requested an update on the scheduling for the flushing of 
pipes. Billy Mayes, Dothan Utilities Superintendent explained that when we put a 
new line in for service we have to flush the lines. He said we require the contractor 
to do it during the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 4:00 a.m. in the morning. This is to 



Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – August 21, 2007, continued. 

lessen any disturbance on our customers. He said if they have any discolored 
water when they get up or before they go to bed at night they need to flush the 
system a little bit. If they continue to have problems they can give us a call. Mr. 
Mayes said that would be the whole new line from Westgate all the way to 
Highway 231, Redmond Road, Flynn Road, Denton Road, Hicks Road and 
Harrison Road. He said it is going to be done in segments and over several nights. 
Mr. Mayes said for anyone needing to call in they could call 615-3000 or 615-
3302. That will forward you to the dispatch center. Cynthia Green said that was in 
the press release sent out yesterday.  
 
Commissioner Lee said he wanted to make sure everyone knew about it and that 
the hours and locations were made known to the public. 
 
Commissioner Newsome asked if we had asked the residents to not use water 
from the 10:00 p.m. to 4:00 a.m. or be careful on how they do it. Mr. Mayes said 
they just need to be aware of what is going on so if they do have discoloration that 
it is not some other issue it is the flushing of that line. He said it will occur when 
you use large volumes of water. Commissioner Newsome said with discoloration 
there are impurities in the water. Mr. Mayes said you are talking about iron and 
manganese in the water. He said he has never seen any issues with it. Mr. Mayes 
said it is nothing to be scared about, but it is an issue we have. City Manager West 
said there could potentially be some pressure problems during the process.  
 
Commissioner Lee said what it comes down to is that we are trying to make it 
better. He said this is just a process that we have to go through to get it to that 
point.  
 
Mayor Thomas requested an update from City Attorney Len White regarding the 
Eva Matthews case. Mr. White said the lawsuit was filed about three years ago, 
around June, 2004. The court ruled in our favor in November, 2006. The case was 
appealed to the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals around January of this year where it 
is has been pending. Mr. White said that means that the parties submitted briefs; 
the court will determine whether or not the ruling in the City’s favor will stand. That 
opinion has not been issued at this point. Mr. White said it could come at any time. 
Mayor Thomas said at one time we were talking about trying to recover legal fees 
in arrears. He said that is on hold until the decision is reaffirmed. Mr. White said 
the case involved more than just the City. There was also the Chairman of the 
Citizen’s Supervisory Committee who was sued. The City defended him as a 
defendant. The City did seek restitution for those attorney’s fees. Mr. White said 
that suit was also dismissed, but it was not appealed. He said the ruling on the 
case against the City will not have any bearing on whether or not costs are 
recovered; however, the Court will wait until the case is decided in total. 
 
Kim Meeker, Leisure Services updated the Commission on the Miracle Field 
Project. 
 
City Manager West reminded everyone that the Burn Ban was still in affect.  
 
City Manager West stated that HUD had accepted the Annual Action Plan. 
 
City Manager West announced that the City United Way Campaign kicked off this 
week. The City is a pace setter, which means we will try to complete the campaign 
by the end of August. 
 
Cynthia Green, Public Information Officer stated that she had sent out a notice to 
all of the media last Wednesday asking them for better ways for us to get 
immediate messaging out to our customers. She said about 95% of them provided 
her with some updated information as far as weekend reporters and other 
information that would be helpful. Mrs. Green said they let us know that text 
messaging was probably most valuable to them over the weekends. Direct calls to 
them are important. Mrs. Green said much of this we are already doing. They have 
just given us some new names to add to the list. Mrs. Green said we are also 
looking into text alert subscribing for the City of Dothan. She said it is very 
effective with some of the mediums that we have. Mrs. Green said in the case a 
couple of weeks ago when we had some 1,000 customers that were effected, 
messages were directed to the media. She encouraged the residents to call the 



Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – August 21, 2007, continued. 

various radio stations; they have the information and when they are looking for 
their news to call resourceful information where they can get accurate information, 
which is here at the City or even some of the radio stations, some TV and some 
newspapers. Mrs. Green said we are very fortunate that our media does present 
accurate information, but sometimes word of mouth is not always the best. She 
said, as far as what we are trying to do at Dothan Utilities to help free up some of 
the telephone lines, Tim Stewart, IT Manager for the City of Dothan and Billy 
Mayes, Dothan Utilities Superintendent are working with the City Manager and 
their staff to alleviate some of the missed calls. We are changing the message that 
the callers will receive whenever they call. Mrs. Green said there are a lot of 
telephone calls coming in at one time. Every call is valuable to us. She said it 
takes time to get staff in place to accept the weekend calls, but we are working 
toward bettering that.  
 
City Manager West said we are also looking at a utility system that helps with 
identifying outages and has the ability to relay messages to customers. He said it 
is a very expensive system, over $200,000.00. Mr. West said we are also looking 
at a reverse 911 system where we could identify areas and the people in those 
areas would receive phone calls. He said all of these systems will cost additional 
money and at some point we have to weigh the costs against being utilized once 
every couple of years or so. Mr. West said the utility system would also help us 
better identify where outages are and what lines are down, etc. He said when we 
look at some of our other needs for equipment and transformer replacements we 
have sort of moved in a direction where we have other priorities. Mr. West said at 
some point in time a system like this or the reverse 911 system would allow us the 
ability to identify areas and start calling people on a systematic basis to warn them 
of such things as a chlorine leak and we need to evacuate the area.  
 
Mayor Thomas said there is a private company in Marianna that does that; we 
would not have to reinvent the wheel. He said they do it for less than a penny a 
call. Mayor Thomas asked about a phone bank, something that would receive up 
to a 100 phone calls at a time that would give a brief message. He said when 
people call in they want to make sure that someone knows that they do not have 
electricity.  
 
City Manager West said we have the capacity now to receive 24 calls at one time. 
He said for every 24 we add…..Mayor Thomas said he was not talking about 
people. Mr. West said he was saying to do that without somebody getting a busy 
signal, for those 100 calls, we would need a phone line. He said there would have 
to be a T-1 line for every 24 calls that was taken at one time. Mr. West said our 
phone bill would go up an extra $3,000.00 a month.  
 
Mayor Thomas said now when people call in they get a recording. Mrs. Green said 
that is on the 615-3000 line. Mrs. Green said we need to direct them to call the 
615-3302 number. That is your outage number. Commissioner Matthews asked if 
the outage number was printed on their utility bill? Mrs. Green said yes and also 
about a year ago every resident was sent a magnet that has all of our telephone 
numbers for reporting electrical outages, water problems, street limbs down, etc. 
She said we can do a better job of that, but everyone needs to make sure they 
have a battery powered radio at home and tune in to a local radio station. We 
would also encourage them to check on their neighbors, family and friends that 
may be on oxygen, etc. Mrs. Green said that is the message we send out and 
know that our staff is working to restore power immediately. 
 
City Manager West said he was going to talk with Tim about an information line. 
He said we are going to be limited by how many calls it can take at one time. We 
also need to make sure that we get the message out that we will have information 
on our website as soon as we have problems like that so that the residents can get 
in the habit of going to the website.  
 
Commissioner Newsome asked how often we made checks of voltage at residents 
in different areas. Mr. Mayes said we do that as requested. He said with the 
regulators and equipment we have it sustains the voltage on our main lines. 
Commissioner Newsome asked if we had meters we could hang across the line 
and determine whether or not that resident is receiving 110, 108 or fewer than 100 
volts into the home. Mr. Mayes said we can log that. Commissioner Newsome 



Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – August 21, 2007, continued. 

asked if we did that randomly. Mr. Mayes said no. Commissioner Newsome said 
that may be something that we may want to look at, particularly in areas where we 
have had outages. He said some of the homes that may be up and running may 
not be getting but 105 or 108 or even some less than 100 volts, but they are still 
operating. Commissioner Newsome said in many cases that could be only from a 
particular transformer that is feeding that particular home. Mr. Mayes said he 
would have to look into that and see what the specific problem is. Commissioner 
Newsome said if they feel the voltage in their home is less than 115, 230, 240, etc. 
they can request a voltage evaluation. Mr. Mayes said there is a difference 
between when you are instantaneous, but if the voltage has a problem or your 
current voltage has a problem we can go out and check that. If there is a problem 
that occurs but it is not occurring when we go out and check it we can do a log 
analysis of the service. Mr. Mayes said that is something that you only want to do 
if there is a problem that is intermittent; it is not a continuous problem. He said you 
can go out and check your voltage anytime to see if you are getting the correct 
voltage. Commissioner Newsome said his reason for this is that we may check a 
particular area today at 3:30 and note that 7 or 8 homes within that area, voltage is 
at 100 volts; that should tell us that we have a problem in that area and the 
likelihood of there is continuous draw in that particular area we may have a failure. 
Mr. Mayes said he has not seen any problems like that. The problems he has seen 
is where there is a problem with your neutral such as when squirrels chew through 
and they are having flickering or other voltage problems. Mr. Mayes said there 
have been problems where they have a dim light and we checked it and we found 
where the transformer was bad.  
 
City Manager West said if anyone has a problem like that they should call us and 
let us check it out. Commissioner Newsome said if they have a problem and they 
feel like their toaster or their microwave, etc. is not getting the full voltage required 
they can call the City to come check it. Mr. Mayes said you can tell them if their 
main voltage is having a problem they can call us. Mr. West said the problem 
could be on their side of the line and they would have to call an electrician. 
Commissioner Newsome said that is when the problem is 50% of getting it solved 
and that would be good. 
 
City Manager West stated that Ms. Janice Newsome has filed an appeal against 
the property at 1103 Sonata Street, which is on the agenda today. 
 
Mayor Thomas introduced the application of Ashley James for a Restaurant Retail 
Liquor License for Quality Inn, located at 3053 Ross Clark Circle, SW. 
Commissioner Tidwell moved for approval, motion seconded by Commissioner 
Matthews and unanimously carried. 
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Ordinance No. 2007-299 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No. _______at Page_______), declaring certain real property no longer needed 
for public or municipal purposes and conveying said parcel to the Industrial 
Development Board of the City of Dothan. Commissioner Tidwell moved for 
immediate consideration, motion seconded by Commissioner Matthews and upon 
the motion being put to vote, those voting “yea, “ were Thomas, Matthews, 
Newsome, Lee, Rudd and Tidwell; “nay:” none. The motion was carried by the 
majority of six “yeas” to no “nays.” 
 
Commissioner Tidwell then moved for adoption of Ordinance No. 2007-299, 
motion seconded by Commissioner Matthews and upon the motion being put to 
vote, those voting “yea,” were Thomas, Matthews, Newsome, Lee, Rudd, and 
Tidwell; “nay:” none. The motion was carried by the majority of six “yeas” to no 
“nays.”  
 
Commissioner Rudd asked if this is the almost 78 acre tract? Mr. West said yes, it 
is in the Industrial Park on the corner of Westgate and Technology Drive.  
 
Mayor Thomas announced that a Qualico affiliated company will be expanding 
their steel fabrication in the Westgate Industrial Park. Over the next 36 months 
there will be an additional 150 new jobs created in the community and at the end 
of 60 months there will be approximately 250 jobs.  
 



Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – August 21, 2007, continued. 

On behalf of the City of Dothan, Mayor Thomas welcomed the investment to the 
community and offered support to Qualico as it builds its presence in our 
community. Mayor Thomas expressed appreciation to the County, State, Chamber 
of Commerce, City staff and the Industrial Development Board for their assistance 
and work on this project. Also, to the leaders of Qualico for their investment in 
growth in the Dothan/Houston County area.  
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Resolution No. 2007-300 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No. _______at Page_______), declaring eight properties as creating a nuisance 
and constituting a hazard to the public health, safety and convenience and 
authorizing the demolition and removal of same. Commissioner Newsome moved 
for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Matthews. Todd McDonald 
presented a PowerPoint presentation of the properties listed in the proposed 
ordinance. The structure on 612 E. Lafayette Street has been demolished by the 
owner and therefore is no longer an issue. Mr. McDonald said this time we 
approached things differently. We had members of the Fire Department, Health 
Department and Police Department join our inspectors in the field to help identify 
the nuisance value of these structures. Mr. McDonald said we have letters in the 
files now from those departments with regards to the nuisance characteristics to 
these structures all of which support the Housing Code Abatement Board’s 
recommendation to the Commission.  
 
Mr. McDonald stated that there were issues with the address for the structure at 
607 Vassar Street. Some of the properties on Vassar also have Citadel Avenue 
addresses on it. Mr. McDonald said the parcel was advertised correctly in the legal 
add and he would recommend that it remain on this list. The structure on 408 
Linden Street has also been demolished. He stated that the structure on 1412 
East Newton Street was presented to the Housing Code Abatement Board, 
however, it is a commercial structure and there is a separate process for that and 
it would need to come off this list.  
 
Commissioner Tidwell asked what the process was for the commercial property at 
1412 East Newton Street. Mr. McDonald said that is would go to Circuit Court. City 
Attorney Len White said it would take at least three months, but could take longer. 
 
Commissioner Newsome asked if we were going to have the same problem on the 
commercial building that is on Patterson Street. He said if we have to go through 
Circuit Court on this one we may need to proceed with the one on Patterson 
Street. Commissioner Newsome said the Abatement Board may have some 
concerns on that. He said he would like to see them move on that. 
 
At this time, Mayor Thomas stated that the Commission would hear the appeal of 
Ms. Janice Newsome for 1103 Sonata Street. Ms. Newsome said she had been 
working on the property. She has other property she has to work on so her time is 
limited. Ms. Newsome said she has made a plan and would present it to the 
Commission and to Mr. McDonald. She stated that she needed more time to work 
on the property. Commissioner Tidwell asked Ms. Newsome how long she had 
owned the property. Ms. Newsome said has owned it for about a year. 
Commissioner Tidwell asked Ms. Newsome if she had done any work on the 
inside. Ms. Newsome said it is going to need work. She said she has temporary 
service there now so she could work on it. Mayor Thomas asked Ms. Newsome to 
make sure the City staff had a copy of her plan. He said what we typically do is to 
move forward with this and as long as she was making substantial progress 
nothing would become of the property.  
 
Commissioner Lee asked if there was a time frame with the plan. Ms. Newsome 
said within a year.  
 
Commissioner Newsome asked if the property would be up to code within a year. 
Ms. Newsome said yes. He then asked if there were any immediate projections on 
what would be done within a month, two months, etc. Ms. Newsome said yes; it is 
in the plan. 
 
Commissioner Rudd asked Ms. Newsome what kind of work had been done to the 
home? He said according to the pictures it did not look like anything had been 
done to it. Ms. Newsome said she had worked on the porch, getting the fixtures 



Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – August 21, 2007, continued. 

leveled. She said she worked a full time job and works on this structure when she 
can. Ms. Newsome said she keeps the grass cut and everything trimmed over 
there. She said she has other property that she tends to and that her father is ill so 
she has to spend time with him. Ms. Newsome said what extra time she has she 
spends it on the most important property at the time, which happens to be 1103 
Sonata Street. 
 
Commissioner Newsome said when we acquire dilapidated properties we 
recognize on acquisition that work must be done, not later, but now. He said 
sometimes that might help us decide whether or not we can bring a dilapidated 
piece of property up to standard. Commissioner Newsome said all of the buildings 
on the list with the exception of 211 Morgan Street are in District 2. He said he has 
been looking at those buildings for the last four years and knows what exactly has 
been done to most of them.  Commissioner Newsome said we want to help the 
districts in the City of Dothan improve the quality of life for those who are here and 
when we have properties like that as our next door neighbors it does not help a lot. 
He said we are going to have to bring our property up to code and we are going to 
have to do it expeditiously. Commissioner Newsome said we will take a look at the 
plan and if it is lived up to within the time limit that has been stated then we will 
understand, but otherwise we have no alternative but to demolish it. Ms. Newsome 
said she understood. 
 
Commissioner Tidwell asked how often are these completions checked? Mr. 
McDonald said we stay after it. They are required to pull a permit and they have 
monthly inspections.  
 
Commissioner Lee asked Mr. McDonald if he had been in contact with Ms. 
Newsome in the last several months to try and get some work done to this piece of 
property? Mr. McDonald said no, we have too many cases to do that. We go 
through the process of notification, advertise and post. He said the individuals 
need to be responsible for their own properties. Mr. West said she was aware that 
the house went before the Housing Code Abatement Board. Commissioner Lee 
asked how long ago was she notified about that? Mr. McDonald said the Housing 
Code Abatement Board heard that in May. She would have received notification of 
the meeting and then there was another legal process to advertise that in the sixty 
day period between when the Housing Code Abatement Board and this hearing 
today. Mayor Thomas said if she fixes her property everything is good and that is 
what we are after. 
 
Commissioner Lee said he agreed with Commissioner Newsome when he said 
sometimes we can get more on our plate than we can handle and in this particular 
case what happens is that the neighbors and everyone else has to pay the 
consequences.  
 
There being no further discussion, Commissioners Newsome and Matthews 
removed their motion and second for approval. Commissioner Lee moved to 
amend the resolution to remove 1412 East Newton Street from the list, motion 
seconded by Commissioner Tidwell and unanimously carried. Commissioner 
Tidwell then moved to approve the resolution as amended, motion seconded by 
Commissioner Matthews and unanimously carried.  
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Resolution No. 2007-301 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No. _______at Page_______), entering into an agreement with Public Service 
Sign Company for the placing of “Please Don’t Litter-Keep Dothan Beautiful” signs 
on the public right-of-way. Commissioner Matthews moved for adoption, motion 
seconded by Commissioner Lee and unanimously adopted. 
 
Mr. West said they are selling advertisement. We get $5.00 per sign. 
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Resolution No. 2007-302 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No. _______at Page_______), awarding the bid and entering into an agreement 
with Northstar Engineering Services for professional surveying services for the S. 
Beverlye Road/E. Saunders Road/Forrester Road/E. Cottonwood Road 
intersection improvements in the amount of $19,500.00. Commissioner Tidwell 
moved for adoption, motion seconded by Commissioner Newsome. 
 



Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – August 21, 2007, continued. 

Commissioner Lee said once this is done does it move to the County for the next 
step. Mr. West said yes, this is what the County needs to determine the right-of-
way. Commissioner Lee said at this point we have done all we can do to date and 
now it is in the County’s hands to do their part and then we are going to work 
together to complete the project. Mr. West said we are going to do the plans for 
that road so the County will know what right-of-way they need. Jerry Corbin, Public 
Works Director stated that this is the fist step. He said they will do the acquisition 
of the right-of-ways themselves based on these legal descriptions. Mr. Corbin said 
that will set the stage for the design which we will do in-house and give them the 
design documents for them to bid.  
 
Mayor Thomas asked if the next step after this is to design that so they will know 
what to acquire or will they be acquiring right-of-way. Mr. Corbin said they will be 
acquiring right-of-way after the preliminary design is done which will be the next 
step after this survey.   
 
Commissioner Lee asked how long that would take? Mr. Corbin said it should not 
take more than 60 days to get them something they could use. Some of that may 
be tweaking some of our actual right-of-way maps. Mr. Corbin said he would not 
assume we could survey this and nail the precise route with just the survey 
operation. He said we will be working with the surveyor and their engineer to nail it 
when we do the survey to start with. Commissioner Lee said he was trying to get a 
time frame. He said from the time we get this, our preliminary drawings to pass to 
the County. Mr. Corbin said 90 days should be a reasonable time frame. City 
Manager West said that assumes if nothing goes wrong. He said typically, one of 
the most difficult parts of doing any improvement is the acquisition of right-of-way. 
Commissioner Lee said he heard 90 days. Mr. Corbin said it is not reasonable to 
assume that everyone that is involved here, property owner wise, is going to sell 
the County their property. Commissioner Lee agreed. He said we have to go into it 
with a positive attitude that we are going to get it done in 90 days. Mayor Thomas 
said the 90 days is us having a document ready to hand to the County to acquire 
right-of-way and we can handle that. Mr. West said that is right, but when it takes a 
year to get all of the right-a-way that is not unusual. Commissioner Lee said that is 
after the 90 days. There being no further discussion the resolution was 
unanimously adopted. 
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Resolution No. 2007-303 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No. _______at Page_______), entering into an agreement with Océ Imagistics for 
the rental of a copier for the Public Works Department, Street and Environmental 
Services Divisions for a three-year period at a monthly cost of $109.00 plus $.0076 
per copy. Commissioner Tidwell moved for adoption, motion seconded by 
Commissioner Matthews and unanimously adopted. 
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Resolution No. 2007-304 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No. _______at Page_______), reappointing Edward Vaughn as a member of the 
Historical Preservation Commission. Commissioner Newsome moved for adoption, 
motion seconded by Commissioner Matthews and unanimously adopted. 
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Resolution No. 2007-305 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No. _______at Page_______), awarding the following bids and approving other 
purchases over $7,500.00 by the City. Commissioner Rudd read each item in the 
meeting. 
 
ITEM VENDOR AMOUNT 
 
Manual Switch Gear Mayer Electric Supply $ 205.00- 
 Dothan, AL $14,473.00 
  
 Stuart C. Irby 
 Pensacola, FL 
 
½ Ton Pickup Truck LWB Bondy’s Ford $16,475.00 
 Dothan, AL  
 
Other Purchases: 
 
Alabama League of Municipalities Alabama League of Municipalities $ 9,205.31 
Membership Dues Montgomery, AL 



Minutes of the Board of Commissioners – August 21, 2007, continued. 

September 1, 2007- 
August 31, 2008 
 
Commissioner Tidwell then moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2007-305, 
motion seconded by Commissioner Lee and unanimously carried. 
 
Mayor Thomas introduced Resolution No. 2007-306 (recorded in Ordinance Book 
No._______at Page_______), approving the following advance travel requests for 
City employees: 
 
NAME CONFERENCE AMOUNT 
 
C. Ott NRA Select Fire Instructor School $ 1,944.50 
J. Penn Florence, AL 
 
Kimberly Hasty Municipal Revenue Officer Training & $ 607.11 
 Certification 
 Tuscaloosa, AL 
 
Billy R. Mayes 2007 AWWI Education Seminar $ 350.28 
 Orange Beach, AL 
 
Ray Owens National Internal Affairs $ 772.52 
 Investigators Association 
 Gatlinburg, TN 
 
Joe Cochran Tactical Narcotics Techniques $ 2,161.24 
Chris Watson Miami Beach, FL 
 
Commissioner Tidwell then moved for adoption of Resolution No. 2007-306, 
motion seconded by Commissioner Matthews and unanimously carried. 
 
Commissioner Lee moved for acceptance of a miscellaneous water easement 
from Watwood Investments, LLC for the Westgate Widening Project, motion 
seconded by Commissioner Tidwell and unanimously carried. 
 
Commissioner Lee moved for acceptance of miscellaneous electrical easements 
from Primesuites, LLC and Triad of Alabama, LLC to provide electrical service to 
the new Prime Care Facility on Healthwest Drive, motion seconded by 
Commissioner Tidwell and unanimously carried. 
 
There being no further business, Commissioner Tidwell moved that the meeting be 
adjourned, motion seconded by Commissioner Lee and upon the unanimous vote 
of "yea," the meeting was duly adjourned. 
 

 
/s/Pam McCoy, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
/s/Pat Thomas, Mayor 
 
/s/Larry Matthews, Associate Commissioner 
 
/s/Amos M. Newsome, Jr., Associate Commissioner 
 
/s/Paul Lee, Associate Commissioner 
 
/s/Jason Rudd, Associate Commissioner  
 
/s/Taylor Barbaree, Associate Commissioner 
 
/s/Phillip Tidwell, Associate Commissioner 
BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS 


